AGENDA

P.

1



iI.

I11.

Iv.

VI

VIL

VIIIL.

IX.

AGENDA
City of Franklin, Kentucky
City Commission

April 22,2019
Regular Meeting — 12:00 Noon

City Hall Meeting Room

117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky

Call to Order and Member Roll Call

Opening Prayer

Approval of Minutes - Approval of Meeting Minutes from April 8, 2019 Regular Session Pg. 5
Recognitions

¢ City of Franklin Water Treatment Plant Staff A Pg. 11
Hear the Public

Community Services

e Discussion and/or possible action regarding KY Transportation Cabinet TAP Grant Pg. 13
Presenter: Tammie Carey, Comm Dev Director

General Government

¢ Discussion and/or possible action regarding Interlocal Purchasing Agreement and Resolution Pg. 20
Presenter: Kenton Powell, City Manager

e Update regarding Rental Real Estate/Business License Audit Pg. 26
Presenter: Daniel Reetzke, Tax Collector

Public Services

Public Safety

Utilities

¢ Discussion and/or possible action regarding Wastewater Treatment Plant HVAC Unit Pg. 28
Presenter: Trent Coffee, WWTP Superintendent

¢ Discussion and/or possible action regarding Willows Subdivision Acceptance Pg. 29

Presenter: Chris Klotter, Public Works Director

P. 2



XI.

XII.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVIL

Ordinances
* Second reading of Ordinance No. 2019-012 entitled: An Ordinance Amending a Prior Pg. 31
Ordinance Establishing a Code of Ethical Conduct Applicable to the Officers and
Employees of the City and City Agencies Presenter: Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
Executive Session
LAND ACQUISITION — Deliberations on the future acquisition or sale of real property by a public agency
where publicity would be likely to affect the value of a specific piece of property to be acquired for public use
or sold by a public agency {KRS 61.810(1)(b)}
LITIGATION — Discussion of proposed or pending litigation {KRS 61.810(1)(c)}
PERSONNEL - Discussions or hearings which might lead to the appointment, discipline, or dismissal of an
individual employee or member {KRS 61.810(1)(f)}
City Attorney Reports
City Manager Reports

Other Commission Business

Adjournment

P.3



MINUTES

P. 4



MINUTES OF REGULAR SESSION
OF THE
CITY OF FRANKLIN
CITY COMMISSION

April 8, 2019
City Hall

117 West Cedar Street
Franklin, Kentucky

The Franklin, Kentucky City Commission met in Regular Session at 12:00 Noon, Monday,
April 8, 2019, in the City Hall meeting room located at 117 West Cedar Street, Franklin,
Kentucky.

Members attending were as follows:

Mayor Larry Dixon Present
Commissioner Jamie Powell Present
Commissioner Herbert Williams Present
Commissioner Brownie Bennett Present
Commissioner Wendell Stewart Present

Others present included City Manager Kenton Powell; City Attorney Scott Crabtree; City
Personnel Director/Deputy Clerk, Rita Vaughn; City Finance Director, Shaunna Cornwell;
City Police Chief, Roger Solomon; Public Works Superintendent Chris Klotter; City Clerk,
Cathy Dillard; F-S Human Rights Commission Director, Donzella Lee; Franklin
Favorite/ WFKN media representative, Keith Pyles; Robert Palmer, Simpson County
Emergency Management; Zak Wren and Corey Weaver, WRECC; L. J. Pearson; Kim Cundall
and Phil Cundall; Judge Executive Mason Barnes; Tom Otto, Faith Baptist Church; and Jarred
Clayton, Jerry Bailey, Joey Kendall, Darrell Mallory, Josh London, and Terry Bailey from the
Public Works Department.

Mayor Dixon called the meeting to order at 12:00 Noon, and Tom Otto of Faith Baptist Church
offered the opening prayer.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
approve the minutes as presented of the March 25, 2019, regular meeting of the Franklin City
Commission; and to approve the minutes of the April 2, 2019, special called meeting of the
Franklin City Commission.

Voting aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

P. 5



RECOGNITION

City Manager Kenton Powell asked the Commission to recognize City of Franklin Public
Works employees and Warren Rural Electric employees. These two agencies, in conjunction
with Kentucky State Highway Department, worked together to install 20 street lights on
Highway 31-W South from Hunt Ford to Wal-Mart.

City employees installed the concrete bases and ran underground conduit which enabled
WRECC to mount the poles and lights. Mr. Powell said it was a great example of multiple
agencies working together to save taxpayer money and to complete a project that would be
beneficial for all citizens of the City of Franklin.

HEAR THE PUBLIC

L. J. Pearson addressed the Commission regarding the flags on Highway 100 East. These flags
were installed by the Vietnam Veterans approximately seven or eight years ago and Mr.
Pearson, along with a local troop of Boy Scouts, have maintained these flags since that time.

Mr. Pearson asked the Commission to consider the City taking over the maintenance and
installation of new flags since he is getting older. After some discussion, Mayor Dixon
indicated the Commission would take the matter under advisement and follow up with Mr.
Pearson. No action was taken on this matter.

Kim Cundall addressed the Commission regarding her request for financial support for the
Franklin Duelers summer collegiate baseball team. She asked if the City of Franklin would
donate $5,000.00 to the league so it could begin its inaugural season. In October of 2018 Mrs.
Cundall asked the Commission to consider a donation, no decision for funding was made at
that time.

Mayor Dixon indicated the Commission would begin budget work sessions for the next fiscal
year’s budget and would take her request under advisement. No action was taken on this
matter.

PUBLIC SAFETY

Police Chief Roger Solomon introduced Officer Mike Jones. Officer Jones has investigated
the recent rash of vehicle break-ins in various neighborhoods in Franklin and updated the
Commission about the investigation and offered information regarding forming a
Neighborhood Watch program.

Officer Jones indicated over 30 break-ins are currently under investigation and reminded
everyone to lock their vehicle doors and remove any valuables (purses, cell phones, cash and/or
loose change) from the vehicle. Officer Jones advised that neighborhood watch programs are
an easy and effective deterrent and encouraged anyone who is interested in developing a

P. 6



program is welcome to contact the Franklin Police Department for information regarding
guidance and implementation.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

City Manager Kenton Powell asked the Commission to approve the request to close College
Street between West Cedar Street and West Kentucky Avenue on Saturday, April 20, 2019
from 6:00 AM until 3:00 PM for the SOKY Earth Day Festival, the Cherry Blossom Art and
Music Festival and the Square-to-Square bicycle ride scheduled that day.

Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
approve closing College Street between West Cedar Street and West Kentucky Avenue on
Saturday, April 20, 2019, from 6:00 AM until 3:00 PM for Earth Day and Cherry Blossom
Festivals.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Manager Kenton Powell asked the Commission to consider Jeremy Loveall’s request to
move the High School Welding Department’s space capsule to the park area located off East
Cedar Street near Drakes Creek (at the boat ramp and picnic shelter site.) Mr. Loveall’s
welding students completed this project and it now needs a permanent home. In addition, Mr.
Loveall agreed to install a concrete pad at the final destination site.

Motion was made by Commissioner Bennett and seconded by Commissioner Powell to
approve placing the space capsule made by the F-S High School Welding class to the park area
located off East Cedar Street near Drakes Creek (at the boat ramp and picnic shelter site) with
a concrete pad installed by Mr. Loveall.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

City Attorney Scott Crabtree asked the Commission to consider a proposed ordinance to revise
the current ethics ordinance. The original ethics ordinance was adopted in 1994 and, due to
changes in the law and the recent adoption of the social media policy, was in need of revisions.

Commissioner Bennett and Commissioner Powell asked to sponsor the ordinance with first
reading to take place in the ordinance portion of the meeting.

ORDINANCES

City Clerk Cathy Dillard provided second summary reading of Ordinance No. 2019-009
entitled: Ordinance Repealing Chapter 53, Chapter 110, Chapter 117 and Section 95.37 of
Chapter 95 and Amending Chapter 114 in the City of Franklin Code of Ordinances.

P. 7



Motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner Stewart to
approve Ordinance No. 2019-009 and was unanimously approved by the following roll call
vote:

Mayor Dixon Aye
Commissioner Powell Aye
Commissioner Williams Aye
Commissioner Bennett Aye
Commissioner Stewart Aye

City Clerk Cathy Dillard provided first summary reading of Ordinance No. 2019-012 entitled:
An Ordinance Amending a Prior Ordinance Establishing a Code of Ethical Conduct
Applicable to the Olfficers and Employees of the City and City Agencies.

No action was taken at the first reading of the ordinance.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 1:08 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Williams and seconded by Commissioner
Powell to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of:

(1) LAND ACQUISITION — Deliberations on the future acquisition or sale of real
property by a public agency where publicity would be likely to affect the value of a
specific piece of property to be acquired for public use or sold by a public agency {KRS
61.810(1)(b);

(2) LITIGATION - Discussion of proposed or pending litigation {KRS 61.810(1)(c)}

(3) BUSINESS — Discussions between a public agency a representative of a business entity
concerning a specific proposal, where open discussions would jeopardize the siting, retention,
expansion, or upgrading of the business {KRS 61.810(1)(g)}

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Entering Executive Session were Mayor Dixon; Commissioners Powell, Bennett, Williams and
Stewart; City Manager Kenton Powell; City Attorney Scott Crabtree; Dennis Griffin,
Executive Director of the Franklin-Simpson Industrial; and County Judge Executive Mason
Barnes.

Dennis Griffin exited executive session at 1:37 PM.

Judge Barnes exited executive session at 1:55 PM.

At 2:16 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Stewart and seconded by Commissioner
Williams to exit Executive Session and return to open session.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

4

P. 8



ADJOURNMENT

At 2:17 PM, motion was made by Commissioner Powell and seconded by Commissioner
Stewart to adjourn the regular meeting of the Franklin City Commission.

Voting Aye: All. Motion carried unanimously.

Larry Dixon, Mayor Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
City of Franklin, Kentucky City of Franklin, Kentucky

P. 9



RECOGNITIONS

P.10



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: City Manager Kenton Powell

DATE: April 18", 2019

SUBJECT: Recognition (Water Treatment Plant — Awards)

C.J. Bailey with Kentucky Energy and Environment Cabinet will attend our Commission
Meeting on Monday to recognize the City of Franklin, Water Treatment Plant.

Franklin’s Water Plant received two awards at the annual Kentucky Water & Wastewater
Operators Association conference held in Covington Kentucky, on April 15", 2019.

Mr. Bailey wants to express personally his appreciation for the continued excellent results from
our own Water Plant and Water Plant personnel.



COMMUNITY
SERVICES

P.12



FRANKLIN

s i
L

MEMO

il 22 Mayor and Commissioners

FROM: Tammie Carey, Community Development Director
DATE: April 18,2019 ‘

RE: Kentucky Transportation Cabinet TAP Grant Funding

The Kentucky Transportation Cabinet’s Office of Local Programs has announced a 30 day application
cycle for Local Public Agencies to turn in applications to be considered for TAP (Transportation
Alternatives Program) federal funding. One area the program focuses on is Safe Routes to School.

The need for a sidewalk on the north side of Wildcat Way and a crosswalk on Main Street was put at the
top of the priority list after a City employee witnessed a student cross under a semi-truck trailer last year.
The increased traffic on Main Street, especially before and after school, make it difficult for students to
cross safely. Kenton and I recently met with Joe Plunk, District Manager for KDOT. He suggested we
construct a small refuge island in the center of Main Street to give a protective barrier to people as they
cross the street.

[ would like to propose that the City apply for funding for the construction of a sidewalk on Wildeat Way
and crosswalks on College Street, Wildcat Way, and Main Street and a refuge island on Mzin Street. We
have talked with Aaron Arnold of Amold Consulting & Engineering Services. Aaron has given us a cost
estimate for the project of $118,462.76. The program requires a 20% match which would be a $23,692
commitment from the City along with any cost overruns.

The application requires a letter of commitment regarding the matching funds. Included is a proposed
letter for your review. Also included is the estimated cost, a map of the project area, and photos of a
refuge island that has been constructed in Bowling Green.

I 'would like to ask for the Commissions authorization to submit an application for funding to the
Kentucky Transportation Cabinet for the Wildcat Way Safe Cross Project and to commit to a funding
match of $23,692 plus any cost overruns.

If you have any questions regarding the project, please feel free to contact me at (270) 776-7552.

Proposed Motion:

I'make a motion that we authorize the submission of an application for funding to the Kentucky
Transportation Cabinet for the Wildcat Way Safe Cross Project and commit to a funding match of
823,692 plus any cost overruns and authorize the Mayor to sign any and all documents related to the
project.

P. 13



E___FRANKLN

. oS
YN cpunry KENTY

April 23,2019

To Whom It May Concern:

The Franklin City Commission met in regular session on Monday, April 22, 2019. The
Commission discussed the need to protect the students in our community that are walking to and
from our schools. A need was presented to provide additional safety measures on 31-W
South/Main Street near Wildcat Way. Many students cross the busy roadway of Main Street
cach day. '

On behalf of the City of Franklin, please allow this letter to serve as authorization of the
submission of an application requesting funding from the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet for
Transportation Alternatives Program funding. We have identified a need for a sidewalk to be
constructed on the north side of Wildcat Way with additional crosswalks and signage being put
in place. We would also like to construct a small refuge island on 31-W South to create a safe
barrier for students as they cross the road.

The project is estimated to cost $118,462.76. The City of Franklin is committed to provide a
minimum of 20% of the total cost of the project and has allocated $23,692 to the project. Any
cost overruns will also be the responsibility of the City.

Once constructed, the City of Franklin Street Department will maintain the sidewalk and
crosswalks ensuring the continued safety of our students. Thank you for your consideration of

our application for funding.

Sincerely,

Larry Dixon
Mayor

P. 14



PROJECT:

OPINION OF COST

City of Franklin - Safe Route to School - FSHS

- ARNOLD CONSULTING ENGINEERING SERVICES, INC.
P.0. BOX 1338 BOWLING GREEN, KY 42101

P. 15

BID ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST TOTAL COST
Clearing and Grubbing 0.1 Acre $ 3,000.00 | $ 300.00
. |[Roadway Excavation 150] Cu. Yd. $ 8.00|$ 1,200.00
Maintain and Control Traffic 1 L.S. $ 5,000.00 | § 5,000.00
Temporary Silt Fence 500] Lin. Ft. $ 2101 $ 1,050.00
Maintain Temporary Silt Fence 1000| Lin. Ft. $ 0.50 | $ 500.00
Seeding and Protection 500 Sqg.vd. [$ 1.50 | $ 750.00
Fertilizer 10-20-20 0.1 Ton $ 790.87 { $ 79.09
Agricultural Limestone 2.6 Ton $ 307.00| $ 798.20
Construction Signs 360| Sq.Ft $ 7.60 | $ 2,736.00
Sidewalk - 4 In Concrete 350| Sgq.Yd. $ 84.00 | 29,400.00
Sidewalk - Ramps 3 Each $ 5,000.00 | $ 15,000.00
RRFB Pedstrian Crosswalk System 1 L.S. $ 35,000.00 | $ 35,000.00
Curb and Gutter 150| Lin. Ft. $ 23.00 | $ 3,450.00
Pavement Markings - Thermoplastic Cross Hatch 700| Sq.Ft. $ 2508 1,750.00
ENGINEERING 1 L.S. $ 7,500.00 | $ 7,500.00
STAKING 1 L.S. $ 1,588.60 | % 1,588.60
DEMOBILIZATION 1 L.S. $ 1,591.53 | $ 1,591.53
Subtotal Sheet 1 $ 107,693.42

ESTIMATED BY: A. Arnold 4-16-2019
10% Contingencies = $ 10,769.34
TOTAL COST = $ 118,462.76




PROPOSED SIDEWALKS, CROSSINGS, AND REFUGE ISLAND

PROPOSED SIDEWALK ON
THE NORTH SIDE OF
WILDCAT WAY WITH A
CROSSWALK ON COLLEGE
STREET AND ON SOUTH
MAIN STREET. PROPOSED
REFUGE ISLAND ON SOUTH
MAIN STREET.

L

ﬁggend

PROPOSED CROSSWALK
B PROPOSED ISLAND
mm— PROPOSED SIDEWALK
Roads

— CITY
COUNTY
=—— FEDERAL
e PRIVATE
——— STATE

0 100 200 400 Feet
§ | ] i ! | 1 1 I | 1:1,000




P. 17



P.18



GENERAL
GOVERNMENT

P. 18



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: Kenton Powell

DATE: April 18%2019

SUBJECT: Street Resurfacing Proposal

The City of Franklin normally seeks street resurfacing asphalt bids in the month of May. This
year, with the Commission’s approval, it would be in the City of Franklin’s best interest to
combine the City’s asphalt tonnage amount with the County’s. Naturally combining the total
volumes for both City and County should result in lower cost per ton of Asphalt. (Meaning
more streets repaved for the same budgeted money.)

The Simpson County Fiscal Court approved this concept during their meeting on Tuesday,
April 17" pending City Attorney’s and Simpson County Attorney’s approval.

Proposed Motion:

Recommend the City of Franklin enter into an Interlocal Cooperative Purchasing Agreement
regarding the purchase of asphalt, milling or other goods or services relating to resurfacing
streets or roads.

Note:
Interiocal Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is on the following 4 pages for your reference.

P. 20



RESOLUTION NO. C-2019

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ADOPT
AN INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT
REGARDING THE PURCHASE OF ASPHALT, MILLING OR OTHER GOODS
OR SERVICES RELATING TO RESURFACING STREETS OR ROADS
WITH THE COUNTY OF SIMPSON, KENTUCKY

WHEREAS, in an effort to save the taxpayers money, the Board of City Commissioners of
the City of Franklin, Kentucky has determined that it is in the best interest of the citizens of Franklin,
Kentucky to enter into an interlocal cooperative purchasing agreement with the County of Simpson
regarding the purchase of asphalt, milling or other goods or services relating to resurfacing streets or
roads that may be required from time to time by both the City of Franklin and the County of
Simpson; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to KRS 65.250(2), the City Manager and the County Judge Executive,
or his or her designees, shall be the administrators of this agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners and the Fiscal Court extend to the other party the
right to purchase pursuant to such bids and contracts to the extent permitted by law, and to the extent
agreed upon between each party and the bidder, contractor, vendor, supplier or service provider; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BEIT RESOLVED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of
Franklin, Kentucky, as follows:

1. The Board of City Commissioners hereby finds and determines that it is in the best
interest of the City of Franklin, Kentucky to enter into an Interlocal Cooperative
Purchasing Agreement Regarding the Purchase of Asphalt, Milling or Other Goods or
Services Relating to Resurfacing Streets or Roads with the County of Simpson, a
copy of which is attached and incorporated hereto as Exhibit A, subject to the
approval of the Kentucky Department for Local Government.

2. The Mayor of the City of Franklin, Kentucky is hereby authorized and directed to
sign any and all documents necessary to effectuate the intent of this Resolution.

This resolution was adopted by a unanimous vote of the Board of City Commissioners of
Franklin, Kentucky at a meeting held on April ,2019.

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY
ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, CITY CLERK
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

P. 21



INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT REGARDING THE
PURCHASE OF ASPHALT, MILLING OR OTHER GOODS OR SERVICES
RELATING TO RESURFACING STREETS OR ROADS
THIS INTERLOCAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT (The

“Agreement”) is made and entered into and deemed effective as of the day of

, 2019, by and between the County of Simpson, Kentucky (hereinafter referred to

as “County”), P. O. Box 242, Franklin, Kentucky 42135; and the City of Franklin, Kentucky
(hereinafter referred to as “City”), P. O. Box 2805, Franklin, Kentucky 42135; (each referred to
herein individually as “Party”, or collectively as “Parties”), each a “public agency as defined by
KRS 65.230.

WHEREAS, under the Interlocal Cooperation Act (the “Act”), Sections 65.210 to 65.300,
inclusive, of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (“KRS”), as amended, any power or powers,
privileges or authority exercised or capable of exercise by a public agency (including a city, a
county, or any other political subdivision of the Commonwealth) may be exercised jointly with
another public agency under an agreement (an “interlocal cooperation agreement”) for joint or
cooperative action pursuant to the provisions of the Act; and,

WHEREAS, the Parties seek to enter into an interlocal cooperative agreement for and
agree to cooperate on governmental purchasing of asphalt and milling or other goods and
services relating to the maintenance of streets and/or roads upon the following terms and
conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually acknowledged and agreed by and between the

Parties as follows:

P. 22



1. This Agreement pertains to bids and contracts for supplies, material, equipment or
services relating to the paving and milling of streets and/or roads or other goods and services
relating to the maintenance of streets or roads that may be required from time to time by both the
City of Franklin and the County of Simpson for the maintenance of streets and/or roads in
Franklin and Simpson County, Kentucky.

2. Each of the parties from time to time goes out to public bid and contracts to
purchase supplies, material, equipment, and services relating to the paving and milling of streets
and/or roads and any other goods or services required for the maintenance of streets or roads.
Each of the parties hereby agrees to extend to the other party the right to purchase pursuant to
such bids and contracts to the extent permitted by law, and to the extent agreed upon between
each party and the bidder, contractor, vendor, supplier, or service provider.

3. Each of the parties shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations
governing its own purchases.

4. Each of the parties shall contract directly with the bidder, contractor, vendor,
supplier, or service provider, and pay directly in accordance with its own payment procedures for
its own purchases. Each party will indemnify and hold the other party harmless as to any claim
arising out of its participation in this Agreement.

5. Any purchase made pursuant to this Agreement is not a purchase from either of
the parties. This Agreement shall create no obligation to either of the parties to purchase any
particular good or service, nor create to either of the parties any assurance, warranty, or other

obligation from the other party with respect to purchasing or supplying any good or service.



6. No separate legal or administrative entity is intended to be created pursuant to this
Agreement. No obligation, except as stated herein, shall be created between the parties or
between the parties and any applicable bidder or contractor. Further, there will be no real or
personal property used in the joint or cooperative undertaking.

7. The City Manager and County Judge Executive, or his or her designees, shall be
the administrators of this Agreement pursuant to KRS 65.250(2), as well as being representatives
of the entities for carrying out the terms of this Agreement.

8. This Agreement shall continue in force until December 31, 2019 or until the bids
are received and a contract is entered into with the bidder, contractor, vendor, supplier, or service
provider acceptable to both parties hereto, whichever occurs earlier.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by the
duly authorized officers or officials of the Parties hereto, effective as of the date first above

written.

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
APPROVED FOR EXECUTION

Kentucky Department for Local Government
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340
Frankfort, KYY 40601

By:

Print Name:
Title:

COUNTY OF SIMPSON

Mason Barnes, County Judge

P. 24



Attest:
Pam Rohrs, Clerk

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Larry Dixon, Mayor
Attest:
Cathy Dillard, City Clerk
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COUNTY OF SIMPSON
The foregoing Interlocal Cooperation Agreement was on this day of

, 2019 acknowledged before me by Mason Barnes, County Judge Executive
of Simpson County, Kentucky.

Notary Public
Notary ID No.
My Commission Expires:

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
COUNTY OF SIMPSON

The foregoing Interlocal Cooperation Agreement was on this day of
» 2011 acknowledged before me by Larry Dixon, Mayor of the City of

Franklin, Kentucky.

Notary Public
Notary ID No.
My Commission Expires:

P. 25



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: Daniel Reetzke, Tax Collector
DATE: April 22, 2019

SUBJECT: Rental Activity Audit Update

Two hundred twenty-six rental activity notice letters were mailed March 4, 2019. Letters were sent to all
property owners who own 3 or more residential properties or one comercial. As of April 17, 2019, one
hundred fourteen accounts have been resolved resulting in seventy five new occupational license accounts,
$9,662.46 of revenue has been collected and, based on numbers from 2018 gross receipts collected, an
annual increase in occupational license fees are expected in the amount of $5,289.

I plan to send out second notices to the outstanding one hundred and twelve accounts on May 15, 2019.

P. 26



UTILITIES

P.

27



; = IT 4‘:-. L
S ARANKIIN

MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners

FROM: Trent Coffee

DATE: April 22, 2019

SUBJECT: City of Franklin Wastewater Treatment Plant HVAC Unit

On April 9, 2019, we discovered our air conditioning wasn’t working at the WWTP. We called Turney’s Heating &
Cooling. A technician was sent to plant and after looking at the system it was discovered that the compressor had gone
out. This unit was installed in 2001. Turney’s quoted a repair price and replacement price. Given the age of the unit (18
years) it was recommended to replace versus repair the air conditioning unit.

Repair: $3,430.00

Replace: $7,850.00

REQUESTED ACTION: Motion and second to authorize the purchase of a new HVAC unit for wastewater
treatment plant from Turney’s Heating & Cooling in the amount of $7,850.00 and authorize the mayor to sign any
necessary documents.

P. 28



MEMO

TO: Mayor Larry Dixon and Commissioners
FROM: Chris Klotter, Public Works Director
DATE: April 16, 2019

SUBJECT: The Willows Subdivision Acceptance

I would like to recommend the acceptance of The Willows Subdivision to include the water,
sewer, stormwater utilities and the streets. The streets include the following:

Willows Drive

Cypress Drive

Wittland Drive (extension)
Acceptance of this subdivision would include a one year warranty on the utilities and streets as
of today’s date of April 22, 2019. All utilities and streets have been inspected and all

deficiencies have been corrected.

Thank you for your consideration.

Proposed Motion:
Motion to accept The Willows Subdivision to include the water, sewer, stormwater, and streets,

subject to the one year warranty from Developer on the utilities and streets beginning April 22,
2019 and to authorize the Mayor to sign all necessary documents.

P. 29



ORDINANCES

P. 30



Sponsors: _Commissioner Powell
Commissioner Bennett

Second Reading: _Apr 22, 2019

Publication Date: _Apr 25, 2019

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 -012

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A PRIOR ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A CODE OF
ETHICAL CONDUCT APPLICABLE TO THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF THE
CITY AND CITY AGENCIES

WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky has enacted
legislation requiring this city to enact and enforce a code of ethics governing the conduct of city
officers and employees; and

WHEREAS, the officials of this city are committed to the operation of a city government
that manifests the highest moral and ethical standards among its officers and employees and
desire to comply with all requirements of the Commonwealth’s local government ethics law; and

WHEREAS, the City previously adopted, in 1994, an ordinance creating a code of ethical
conduct and the Board of City Commissioners deems it appropriate to amend and update this
code of ethical conduct.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of
Franklin, Kentucky:

SECTION 1. Title. This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “City of Franklin
Code of Ethics.”

SECTION 2. Findings. The legislative body of the City of Franklin finds and declares that:
(A)  Public office and employment with the city are public trusts.

(B)  The vitality and stability of the government of this city depend upon the
public’s confidence in the integrity of its elected and appointed officers and employees.
Whenever the public perceives a conflict between the private interests and the public duties of a
city officer or employee, that confidence is imperiled.

(C)  The government of this city has a duty to provide its citizens with
standards by which they determine whether public duties are being faithfully performed, and to
make its officers and employees aware of the standards which the citizens rightfully expect them
to comply with while conducting their duties.

SECTION 3. Purpose and Authority.

(A) It is the purpose of this ordinance to provide a method of assuring that
standards of ethical conduct and financial disclosure requirements for officers and employees of
the city shall be clearly established, uniform in their application, and enforceable, and to provide
the officers and employees of the city with advice and information concerning potential conflicts
of interest which might arise in the conduct of their public duties.

P. 31



(B) It is further the purpose of this ordinance to meet the requirements of KRS
65.003 as enacted by the 1994 Kentucky General Assembly.

(C)  This ordinance is enacted under the power vested in the city by KRS
82.082 and pursuant to requirements of KRS 65.003.

SECTION 4. Definitions. As used in this ordinance, unless the context clearly requires a
different meaning;:

(A)  “Business” means any corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, firm,
enterprise, franchise, association, organization, self-employed individual, holding
company, joint stock company, receivership, trust, professional service
corporation, limited liability company, or any legal entity through which business
is conducted for profit.

(B)  “Board” means the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics which is
vested by this ordinance with the responsibility of enforcing the requirements of
the city’s code of ethics.

(C)  “Candidate” means any individual who seeks nomination or election to a
city office. An individual is a candidate when the individual files a notification
and declaration for nomination for office with the county clerk or secretary of
state, or is nominated for office by a political party, or files a declaration of intent
to be a write-in candidate with the county clerk or secretary of state.

(D)  “City” refers to the City of Franklin, Kentucky.

(E) “City Agency” means any board, commission, authority, nonstock
corporation, or other entity created, either individually or jointly, by this city.

(F) “City Business” any discussion of specific city issues that go beyond
general information.

(G)  "Confidential information" means information obtained in the course of
holding public office or employment, or as a contractor to the city, which is not
available to members of the public and which the officer or employee is not
authorized to disclose, except to designated individuals or bodies, including
written and non-written information. When such information is also available
through channels open to the public, officers and employees are not prohibited
from disclosing the availability of those channels.

(H) "Consultant" means an independent contractor or professional person, or
entity engaged by the city or advising a city officer, and in a position to influence
a city decision or action or have access to confidential information.

P. 32



(D "Customer or client" means:

1. Any person or entity to which a person or entity has supplied goods or
services during the previous 24 months, having a total value greater than
one thousand dollars ($1,000); or

2. Any person or entity to which an officer or employee's outside employer
or business has supplied goods or services during the previous 24 months,
having a total value greater than one thousand dollars ($1,000), but only if
the officer or employee knows or has reason to know the outside employer
or business supplied the goods or services.

J) "Domestic partner" is an adult. unrelated by blood, with which an
unmarried or separated officer or employee has an exclusive committed
relationship, maintains a mutual residence, and shares basic living expenses.

(K)  “Employee” means any person, whether full-time, part-time, seasonal, or
temporary, and whether paid or unpaid, who is employed or provides service to
the city. The term “employee” shall not include any contractor or subcontractor
or any of their employees. '

(L) “Family member” means a spouse, domestic partner, parent, stepparent,
child, stepchild, brother, stepbrother. sister, stepsister, mother-in-law, father-in-
law, son-in-law. daughter-in-law, grandparent or grandchild.

(M) “Immediate family member” means a spouse, domestic partner, a child or
step-child who is not emancipated and who resides in the officer’s or employee’s
household, or a person claimed by the officer or emplovee, or the officer’s or
employee’s spouse or domestic partner, as a dependent for tax purposes.

(N\) "Financial benefit" includes any money, service, license, permit, contract,

authorization, loan, discount, travel, entertainment, hospitality, gratuity, or any
promise of any of these, or anything else of value. This term does not include

campaign contributions authorized by law.

(0) "Financial interest" is a relationship to something such that a direct or
indirect financial benefit has been. will be. or might be received as a result of it.

(P) “Household" includes anyone whose primary residence is in the officer or
emplovee's home. including nonrelatives who are not rent pavyers or staff.

(Q) “Officer” means any person, whether full-time or part-time, and whether
paid or unpaid, who is one of the following:

1. Mayor;
2. City Commission Member;

P. 33



3. City Clerk:

4. City Manager;

5. Police Chief:

6. Any person who occupies a non-elected office created under KRS
83A.080: or
7. A member of the governing body of any city agency or joint body of any

governmental agency who has been appointed to the governing body of
the agency by the city.

(R) “Official Act” means any legislative, administrative, appointive or
discretionary act of any public official or employee of the city or any agency,
board, committee or commission thereof.,

(S) “Personal benefit" includes benefits other than those that are directly
financially advantageous. These include financial benefits to immediate family
members, business associates, as well as non-financial benefits to these people
and to oneself, including such things as reputation and the success of one's career.

(D "Personal interest" means a relationship to something such that a personal
benefit has been, will be, or might be obtained by certain action or inaction with

respect to it.

() “Social media” is understood to be content created by individuals, using
the internet. Examples of social media include Facebook, blogs, Instagram, RSS,
YouTube, Second Life, Twitter, LinkedIn, and Flickr.

(V) "Subordinate" means another official or employee over whose activities an
official or employee has direction, supervision or control.

(W) “Substantial debtor or creditor” means any person or business owed more
than ten thousand dollars ($10,000), except from debts arising from the purchase
of a primary residence or the purchase of consumer goods which are bought or
used primarily for person. family or household purposes.

(X)  “Transaction” means any matter, including but not limited to, contracts,
work or business with the city, the sale or purchase of real estate by the city, and
any request for zoning amendments. variances, or special permits pending before
the city, upon which a public officer or employee performs an official act or
action.

P. 34



STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

SECTION 5. Conflicts of Interest in General. Every officer and employee of the city and every
city agency shall comply with the following standards of conduct:

(A) No officer or employee, or any immediate family member of any officer
or employee, shall have interest in a business or engage in a business, transaction, or activity,
which is in substantial conflict with the proper discharge of the officer’s or employee’s public
duties.

(B)  No officer or employee shall intentionally use or attempt to use his or her
official position with the city to secure unwarranted (or unsolicited) privileges or advantages for
himself or herself or others.

(C)  No officer or employee shall intentionally take or refrain from taking any
discretionary action, or agree to take or refrain from taking any discretionary action, or induce or
attempt to induce any other officer or employee to take or refrain from taking any discretionary
action, on any matter before the city in order to obtain a financial benefit for any of the
following:

The officer or employee;

A family member;

An outside employer;

Any business in which the officer or employee, or any immediate
family member has a financial interest, including but not limited
to:

b

(a) An outside employer or business of his or hers, or of his or her
family member, or someone who works for such outside
employer or business;

(b) A customer or client; or,

(c) A substantial debtor or creditor of his or hers, or of his or her
family member;

5. Any business with which the officer or employee or any family
member is negotiating or seeking prospective employment or other
business or professional relationship.

6. A person or entity from whom the officer or employee has received an
election campaign contribution of a total of more than two hundred
dollars ($200) during the past election cycle (this amount includes
contributions from a person's immediate family or business as well as
contributions from an entity's owners, directors, or officers, as well as

contributions to the officer or employee's party committee or

noncandidate political committee).

P. 35



7. A nongovernmental civic group, social, charitable, or religious
organization of which he or she, or his or her immediate family
member, is an officer or director.

(D)  No officer or employee shall be deemed in violation of any provision in
this section if, by reason of the officer’s or employee’s participation, vote, decision, action and
inaction, no financial benefit accrues to the officer or employee, an immediate family member,
an outside employer, or a business as defined by subsection (C)(4) and (C)(5) of this section, as a
member of any business, occupation, profession, or other group, to any greater extent than any
gain could reasonably expect to accrue to any other member of the business, occupation,
profession, or other group.

(E)  Every officer or employee who has a prohibited financial interest which
the officer or employee believes or has reason to believe may be affected by his or her
participation, vote, decision or other action taken within the scope of his or her public duties
shall disclose the precise nature and value of interest, in writing, to the governing body of the
city or city agency served by the officer or employee, and the disclosure shall be entered on the
official record of the proceedings of the governing body. The officer or employee shall refrain
from taking any action with respect to the matter that is the subject of the disclosure pursuant to
Section 7 of this ordinance.

SECTION 6. Conflicts of Interest in Contracts.

(A)  Pursuant to KRS 61.252, no officer or employee of the city or any agency
shall directly or through others undertake, execute, hold, or enjoy, in whole or in part, any
contract made, entered into, awarded, or granted by the city or a city agency, except as follows:

1. The prohibition in subsection (A) of this section shall not apply to
contracts entered into before an elected officer filed as a candidate for a city office, before an
appointed officer filed as a candidate for a city office, before an appointed officer was appointed
to a city or agency office, or before an employee was hired by the city or a city agency.
However, if any contract entered into by the city or city agency officer or employee before he or
she became a candidate, was appointed to office, or was hired as an employee, is renewable after
he or she becomes a candidate, assumes the appointed office, or is hired as an employee, then the
prohibition in subsection (A) of this section shall apply to the renewal of the contract.

2. The prohibition in subsection (A) of this section shall not apply if
the contract is awarded after public notice and competitive bidding, unless the officer or
employee is authorized to participate in establishing the specifications, awarding the contract, or
managing contract performance after the contract is awarded. If the officer or employee has any
of the authorities set forth in the preceding sentence, then the officer or employee shall have no
interest in the contract, unless the requirements set forth in subpart (3) below are satisfied.

3. The prohibition of subsection (A) of this section shall not apply in
any case where the following requirements are satisfied:

P. 36



(a) The specific nature of the contract transaction and the
nature of the officer’s or employee’s interest in the contract are publicly disclosed at a meeting of
the governing body of the city or city agency.

(b)  The disclosure is made a part of the official record of the
governing body of the city or city agency before the contract is executed.

(c) A finding is made by the governing body of the city or city
agency that the contract with the officer or employee is in the best interests of the public and the
city agency because of price, limited supply, or other specific reasons.

(d A finding is made a part of the official record of the
governing body of the city or city agency before the contract is executed.

(B)  Any violation of this section shall constitute a Class A misdemeanor, and
upon conviction, the court may void any contract entered into as violation of this section.
Additionally, a violation of this section shall be grounds for removal from office or employment
with the city in accordance with any applicable provisions of state law and ordinances, rules or
regulations of the city.

SECTION 7. Withdrawal from Participation.

(A)  An officer or employee must refrain from acting on or discussing, formally or
informally, a matter before the city, if acting on the matter. or failing to act on the
matter, may personally or financially benefit any of the persons or entities listed
in Section 5(C) above. Such an officer or employee should join the public if the
withdrawal occurs at a public meeting or leave the room if it is a legally
conducted closed meeting (executive session) under KRS 61.810 and KRS
61.815.

(B)  Withdrawal at a meeting requires the public announcement, on the record, of the
reason for withdrawal. ’

(C)  Ongoing Conflict: An officer or employee whose outside employment or other
outside activity or relationship can reasonably be expected to require more than
sporadic withdrawal must resign or cease such outside employment or activity.
An officer or employee should not begin employment or an activity or
relationship that can reasonably be expected to require more than sporadic
withdrawal. If a prospective officer or employee is in such a situation, he or she
should not accept the position with the city.

(D)  Request to Withdraw: If an officer or appointed board member is requested to
withdraw from participation in a matter for the reason that he or she has a conflict

of interest, by:

P. 37



Another member:

A party to the current matter; or

Anyone else who may be affected by a decision relating to this matter, the
member must decide whether to withdraw on the official record. If the
member decides not to withdraw, the challenging member(s) may file a
complaint with the ethics board.

SECTION 8. Receipt of Gifts.

(A)No officer or employee of the city or city agency shall directly, or indirectly

through any other person or business, solicit or accept any gift having a fair
market value of more than one hundred dollars ($100.00), whether in the form
of money, service, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise, or
any other form, under circumstances in which it could reasonably be inferred
that the gift was intended to influence, or could reasonably be expected to
influence the officer or employee in the performance of his or her public
duties.

(B) Certain items are typically excluded from this provision. Examples of these

1.

6.

items include:

Gifts received from relatives.

Gifts accepted on behalf of the city and transferred to the city.

Reasonable travel and travel-related expenses, cost of admission, food and
beverages, and entertainment furnished in connection with certain
specified public events, appearances, ceremonies, economic development
activities, training, or fact-finding trips related to official government

business.

Usual and customary loans made in the ordinary course of business.

Awards, including certificates, plaques. and commemorative tokens
presented in recognition of public service.

Informational, promotional, and educational items.

SECTION 9. Use of City Property, Equipment and Personnel.

(A)

No officer or employee of the city shall use or permit the use of any city

time, funds, personnel, equipment, or other personal or real property for the private use of any

person, unless:

P. 38



1. The use is specifically authorized by a stated city policy.

2. The use is available to the general public, and then only to the
extent and upon the terms that such use is available to the general
public. :

SECTION 10. Misuse of Confidential Information.

No officer or employee of the city or any city agency shall intentionally use or
disclose information acquired in the course of his or her official duties, if the primary
purpose of the use or disclosure is to further his or her personal or financial interest or
the personal or financial interest of another person, group or business. Information shall
be deemed confidential, if it is not subject to disclosure pursuant to the Kentucky Open
Records Act at the time of its use or disclosure.

SECTION 11. Political Solicitation.

(A)  An officer, employee, or municipal candidate may not request, or authorize
anyone else to request, that any subordinate or potential future subordinate
participate, or not participate, in any political activity, including the making of a

campaign contribution.

(B)  An officer, employee, or municipal candidate may not engage in any political
activity for the city, while on duty, or in uniform, using city funds, supplies,
vehicles, or facilities, in uniform, or during any period of time during which he or
she is normally expected to perform services for the city, for which compensation

is paid.

SECTION 12. Patronage.

No officer or employee may promise an appointment or the use of his or her
influence to obtain an appointment to any position as a reward for any political activity
or contribution.

SECTION 13. Complicity with or Knowledge of Others' Violations.

No officer or employee may, directly or indirectly, induce, encourage, or aid
anyone to violate any provision of this code. If an officer or employee knows or has
reasonable suspicion to believe that someone has violated this code, he or she is required
to report it to the Ethics Board.

SECTION 14. Meeting Attendance.

All elected city officers and members of city boards and commissions are
expected to attend their meetings. It is a violation of this code to miss more than one-third
(1/3) of the meetings in a twelve (12) month period.

P. 39



SECTION 15. Social Media.

(A)

®)

©

(D)

(E)

()

(G)

(H)

City officials [including members of boards, commissions, etc.] can maintain a
personal presence on social media. However, to be considered personal, there can
be no mention of their status as a city official. Any mention of their status as a
city official potentially changes the nature of the page, requiring record keeping in
accordance with the Kentucky Department of Library and Archives retention
schedule and subjecting the entire page to Open Records requests.

Elected city officials who want to interact with the community on social media in
their role as city official are required to maintain a separate account. City
officials will notify the city clerk of any official page(s) utilized. The city clerk
will maintain an updated list of official pages of city officials.

City officials shall conduct themselves professionally and as a representative of
the city.

Elected city official pages shall clearly indicate that any content posted or
submitted for posting is subject to public disclosure. Additionally, guidelines, if
any, shall be posted conspicuously on the page.

No comments shall be deleted unless in violation of posted guidelines. Deleted
comments shall be provided to the city clerk and must be saved for a time period
of not less than one year.

City officials shall not conduct city business through their social media sites. If
receiving a specific request from a citizen, the city official shall state: “Thank you
for your question. Please email me at [official email address] or contact me at
[phone number]. I look forward to speaking with you.”

Elected officials shall not discuss issues pending before the commission. Elected
officials may illicit public input but shall not respond to comments. Engaging in
substantive conversations on social media could require retention of the posts and
may violate the Open Meetings Act if other elected officials are also engaging in
the discussion.

City employees are bound by the city’s social media policies in the City of

Franklin’s Personnel Policies and the City of Franklin’s Email, Social Media and

Electronic Communications Policy.

SECTION 16. Email.

(A)

City officials shall maintain an official email address and shall provide the email
address to the city clerk. This must be separate from their personal email account.

10

P. 40



(B)  No city business shall occur through a personal email account.

City officials shall retain emails according to the Kentucky Department of Library and Archives
schedule for emails. City officials shall direct any record keeping questions to the city clerk.

SECTION 17. Representation of Interests Before City Government.

(A) No officer or employee of the city or any city agency shall represent any
person or business, other than the city, in connection with any cause, proceeding, application or
other matter pending before the city or city agency.

(B)  Nothing in this section shall prohibit an employee from representing
another employee or employees where the representation is within the context of official labor
union or similar representational responsibilities.

(C)  Nothing in this section shall prohibit any officer or employee from
representing himself or herself in matters concerning his or her own interests.

(D)  No elected officer shall be prohibited by this section from making any
inquiry for information on behalf of a constituent, if no compensation, reward or other thing of
value is promised to, given to, or accepted by the officer, whether directly or indirectly, in return
for the inquiry.

SECTION 18. Post-Employment Restriction. No officer or employee of the city or city
agency shall appear or practice before the city or any city agency with respect to any matter on
which the officer or employee personally worked while in the service of the city or city agency
for a period of one (1) year after the termination of the officer’s or employee’s service with the
city or city agency.

SECTION 19. Nepotism Prohibited.

(A)  No officer or employee of the city or a city agency shall advocate, recommend or
cause the:
employment;
appointment;
promotion;
transfer;
advancement of a family member to an office or position of employment
with the city or a city agency; or
advancement of an immediate family member to an office or position of
employment with the city or a city agency.

NN

o

(B)  No office or employee of the city or a city agency shall supervise or manage the
work of an immediate family member.

(C)  No officer or employee shall participate in any action relating to the employment
or discipline of an immediate family member, except that this prohibition shall not prevent an

11

P. 41



elected or appointed official from voting on or participating in the development of a budget
which includes compensation for a family member, provided that the immediate family member
is included only as a member of a class of persons or a group, and the immediate family member
benefits to no greater extent than any other similarly situated member of the class or group.

(D)  The prohibitions in this section shall not apply to any relationship or situation that
would violate the prohibition, but which existed prior to January 1, 1995.

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

SECTION 20. Who Must File. The following classes of officers and employees of the
city and city agencies shall file an annual statement of financial interests with the Barren River
Regional Board of Ethics:

(A)  Elected city officials;

(B)  Candidates for elected city office;

(C)  Members of the city planning and zoning commission, board of adjustment, code
enforcement board, industrial board, and electric plant board,

(D)  Members of the Board of Ethics created by this ordinance; and

(E)  Non-elected officers and employees of the city and any city agency who are
authorized to make purchases of materials or services, or award contracts, leases
or agreements involving the expenditure of more than Seven Thousand Five
Hundred Dollars.

SECTION 21. When to File Statements, Amended Statements.

(A)  Pursuant to the Memorandum of Agreement between the city and the Barren
River Area Development, the initial statements of financial interests required by this section
shall be filed with the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics, c/o Barren River Area
Development District Records Administrator no later than 3:00 p.m., March 1, 1995. All
subsequent statements of financial interest shall be filed no later than 3:00 p.m. on March 1 each
year, provided that:

1. An officer or employee newly required to fill an office or position with the
city or a city agency shall file his or her initial statement no later than thirty (30) days after the
date of appointment.

2. A candidate for city office shall file his or her initial statement no later
than thirty (30) days after the date on which the person becomes a candidate for elected city
office.

(B)  The Barren River Regional Board of Ethics may grant a reasonable extension
of time for filing a statement of financial interest for good cause shown.

12

P. 42



(C) In the event there is a material change in any information contained in a financial

statement that has been filed with the Board, the officer or emplovee shall, no later than thirty

(30) days after becoming aware of the material change, file an amended statement with the

Board.

SECTION 22. Form of Statement of Financial Interests. The statement of financial
interests shall be filed on a form prescribed by the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics.
The Board shall deliver to the city a copy of the form for each officer and employee required to
file the statement, no later than February 15 of each year. The failure to deliver the form shall
not relieve the officer or employee of the obligation to file the statement.

SECTION 23. Control and Maintenance of the Statement

(A)  The Barren River Regional Board of Ethics shall be the “official custodian™ of
the statements of financial interests. The statements of financial interest shall be maintained by
the Board, or the Records Administrator designated by the Board as “custodian” of public
documents, available for public inspection immediately upon filing.

(B) A statement of financial interests shall be retained by the Board, or the

“custodian,” fer-a—perted-offive{5)-years-afterfilingprovided-that: pursuant to the Kentucky

Department of Library and Archives schedule as follows:

1. Upon the expiration of three(3) two (2) years after a person ceases to be
an officer or employee of the city or a city agency, the Board shall cause to be destroyed any
statements of financial interests or copies of those statements filed by the person.

2. Upon the expiration of three{(3) two (2) years after any election at which a
candidate for elected city office was not elected or nominated, the Board shall cause to be
destroyed any statements of financial interests or copies of those statements filed by the person.

SECTION 24. Contents of the Financial Interest Statements

(A)  The statement of financial interest shall include the following information of the
preceding calendar year:

1. The name, current business address, business telephone number, and home
address of the filer.
2. The title of the filer’s officer, office sought, or position of employment.
3. The occupation of the filer and the filer’s spouse or domestic partner.
13

P. 43



4. Information that identifies each source of income of the filer and the filer’s
immediate family members exceeding five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) during the preceding
calendar year, and the nature of the income (e.g. salary, commission, dividends, retirement fund
distribution, etc.).

5. The name and address of any business located within the state in which
the filer or member of the filer’s immediate family had at any time during the preceding calendar
year an interest of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) at fair market value or five percent (5%)
ownership interest or more.

6. The name and address of any business located outside of the state, if the
business has engaged in any business transactions with the city during the past three (3) years, or
which is anticipated to engage in any business transactions with the city, in which the filer or any
member of the filer’s immediate family had any time during the preceding calendar year an
interest of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) at fair market value or five percent (5%) ownership
interest or more.

7. A designation as commercial, residential, or rural, and the location of all
real property within the county, other than the filer’s primary residence, in which the filer or any
member of the filer’s immediate family had during the preceding calendar year an interest of ten
thousand dollars ($10,000.00) or more.

8. Each source by name and address of gifts or honoraria having an
aggregate fair market value of one hundred dollars ($100.00) or more from any single source,
excluding gifts received from family members, received by the filer or any member of the filer’s
immediate family during the preceding calendar year.

9. The name and address of any substantial debtor or creditor owed more
than ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) except debts arising from the purchase of a primary
residence or the purchase of consumer goods which are bought or used primarily for person,
family or household purposes.

10.  The name and address of any business located within the state in which
the filer or any member of the filer’s immediate family had an interest at any time during the
preceding calendar year.

11, Each source by name and address of campaign contributions having an
aggregate fair market value of two hundred dollars ($200.00) or more from any single source,
excluding contributions received from family members, received by the filer or any member of
the filer’s immediate family during the preceding calendar vear.

(B)  Nothing in this section shall be construed to require any officer or employee to
disclose any specific dollar amounts nor the names of individual clients or customers of
businesses listed as sources of income.

14

P. 44



SECTION 25. Noncompliance with Filing Requirement.

(A)  The Barren River Board of Ethics, or the Records Administrator, shall notify by
certified mail each person required to file a statement of financial interests who fails to file the
statement by the due date, files an incomplete statement, or files a statement in a form other than
prescribed by the Board. The notice shall specify the type of failure or delinquency, shall
establish a date by which the failure or delinquency shall be remedied, and shall advise the
person of the penalties for a violation.

(B)  Any person who fails or refuses to file the statement or who fails or refuses to
remedy a deficiency in the filing identified in the notice under subsection (A) within the time
period established in the notice shall be guilty of a civil offense and shall be subject to civil fine
imposed by the Board in an amount not to exceed twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per day, up to a
maximum total civil fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00). Any civil fine imposed by the Board
under this section may be recovered by the Board in a civil action in the nature of a debt if the
offender fails or refuses to pay the penalty within a prescribed time.

(C)  Any person who intentionally files a statement of financial interests which he or
she knows to contain false information or intentionally omits required information shall be guilty
of a Class A misdemeanor.

ENFORCEMENT

SECTION 26. Board of Ethics.

(A)  Pursuant to the memorandum of Agreement setting forth the Barrem River
Regional Board of Ethics, all authority for the establishment of procedures for formation and
maintenance of the Barren River Board of Ethics appropriate thereto are hereby delegated
provided:

1. that the Board shall comply with all terms and conditions as set forth in
the Act establishing a Code of Ethics for cities,

2. that any hearings or related procedures shall comply with the Kentucky
Rules of Civil Procedure and the Kentucky Rules of Evidence,

3. that any regulation adopted by the Board governing its procedures shall be
consistent with the Kentucky Open Records law and,

4. that the City shall bear its proportionate share of any costs for
investigations, hearings, preparation of findings, and the issuance of any advisory opinions by
the Board,

5. that no member of the Regional Board of Ethics shall hold a position in any
local government or be subject to the terms of this ordinance.

15

P. 45



SECTION 27. Reprisals Against Persons Disclosing Violations Prohibited.

(A)  No officer or employee of the city or any city agency shall subject to reprisal, or
directly or indirectly use, or threaten to use, any official authority or influence in any manner
whatsoever which tends to discourage, restrain, deter, prevent, interfere with, coerce, or
discriminate against any person who in good faith reports, discloses, divulges, or otherwise
brings to the attention of the Barren River Regional Board of Ethics or any other agency or
official of the city or the Commonwealth any facts or information relative to an actual or
suspected violation of this ordinance.

(B)  This section shall not be construed as:

1. Prohibiting disciplinary or punitive action if an officer or employee of the
city or any city agency discloses information which he or she knows:

(a) To be false or which he or she discloses with reckless disregard for
its truth or falsity;

(b) To be exempt from required disclosure under the provisions of the
Kentucky Open Records Act, KRS 61.870 to 61.884; or

(©) Is confidential under any other provision of law.

SECTION 28. Penalties.

(A)  Except when another penalty is specifically set forth in this ordinance any officer
or employee of the city or any city agency who is found by the Barren River Board of Ethies to
have violated any provision of this ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a civil offense and may
be subject to a civil fine imposed by the Board of Ethics not to exceed one thousand dollars
($1,000.00), which may be recovered by the city in a civil action if the offender fails to pay the
penalty within a prescribed period of time.

(B)  In addition to all other penalties which may be imposed under the ordinance, any
officer or employee of the city or any city agency who is found by the Board of Ethics to have
violated any provision of this ordinance shall forfeit to the city or city agency an amount equal to
the economic benefit or gain which the officer or the employee is determined by the Board to
have realized as a result of the violation. The amount of any forfeiture may be recovered by the
city on a civil action in the nature of debt, if the offender fails to pay the amount of the forfeiture
within a prescribed period of time.

(C) In addition to all other penalties which may be imposed under this ordinance, a
finding by the Board of Ethics that an officer or employee of the city or any city agency is guilty
of a violation of this ordinance shall be sufficient cause of removal, suspension, demotion, or
other disciplinary action by the executive authority of the city or city agency, or by any other
officer or agency having the power of removal or discipline. Any action to remove or discipline

16

P. 46



any officer or employee for a violation of this ordinance shall be taken in accordance with all
applicable ordinances and regulations of the city and all applicable laws of the Commonwealth.

SECTION 29. The City of Franklin, by and through its Board of Commissioners hereby
readopts, and incorporates herein by reference that certain Memorandum of Agreement by and
between the City of Franklin and the Barren River Area Development District dated January 5,
1995, which sets forth the duties of the Barren River Regional Ethics Board.

SECTION 30. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is deemed by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this
ordinance shall continue in full force and effect.

SECTION 31. Conflicting Ordinances Repealed. All other ordinances and parts of
ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 32. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take full force and effect immediately
upon publication as required by KRS 83A.060.

APRIL 8, 2019 FIRST READING

APRIL 22,2019 SECOND READING

At a meeting of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, held
on April 22, 2019, and on motion made by Commissioner
and seconded by Commissioner , the foregoing ordinance was
adopted, after full discussion, by the following vote:

BROWNIE BENNETT
JAMIE POWELL
HERBERT WILLIAMS
WENDELL STEWART
LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

APPROVED BY:

LARRY DIXON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

CATHY DILLARD, City Clerk
City Of Franklin, Kentucky

17

P. 47



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE
CITY OF FRANKLIN, KENTUCKY

A summary of an ordinance of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, adopted by the Board of
Commissioners on April 22, 2019, which summary is also the title or caption of said ordinance:

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 012

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A PRIOR ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A
CODE OF ETHICAL CONDUCT APPLICABLE TO THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES
OF THE CITY AND CITY AGENCIES

The ordinance sets forth its purpose, goals, and specifically sets out definitions for terms used in the ordinance. It also
creates and establishes a City of Franklin Code of Ethics to provide a method of assuring that standards of ethical
conduct and financial disclosure requirements for officers and employees of the City are clearly established, uniform
in their application and enforceable.

It also provides for appeal procedures and penalties, with both of those sections being set forth in full hereinbelow
and, in addition, the summary of the remaining sections are set forth as follows:

SECTION 5. Conflicts of Interest in General. Sets forth conflict of interest situations for officers and employees
of the City.

SECTION 6. Conflicts of Interest in Contracts. Sets forth conflict of interest situations for officers or employees
attempting to contract with the City.

SECTION 7. Withdrawal from Participation. Sets forth when officers or employees should refrain from actions
involving the City.

SECTION 8. Receipt of Gifts. Sets forth limitations on receipts of gifts by City officers and employees.

SECTION 9. Use of Citv Property, Equipment and Personnel. Sets forth limitations on City officers’ and
employees’ use of City property.

SECTION 10. Misuse of Confidential Information. No officer or employee of the city or city agency shall
intentionally use or disclose information acquired in the course of his/her official duties if it is used to further
his/her personal or financial interest or of another entity.

SECTION 11. Political Solicitation. An officer, employee or municipal candidate may not request or authorize
anyone else to request a subordinate to participate in any political activity, nor shall he/she engage in any political
activity while on duty or in uniform, using city funds, supplies, etc.

SECTION 12. Patronage. No officer or employee may promise an appointment or the use of his or her influence
to obtain an appointment to any position as a reward for any political activity or contribution.

SECTION 13. Complicity with or Knowledge of Others’ Violations. No officer or employee may induce,
encourage or aid anyone to violate any provision of this code, and if he/she believes the code has been violated,
he/she is required to report it to the Ethics Board.

SECTION 14. Meeting Attendance. All elected city officers and members of city boards and commissions are
expected to attend their meetings. It is a violation of this code to miss more than one-third of the meetings in a 12
month period.

SECTION 15-16. Social Media and Email. Sets forth guidelines for City officers and employees to use social
media and email.

P. 48



SECTION 17. Representation of Interests Before City Government. Sets for limitations on City officers and
employees representing a third party’s interests to the City.

SECTION 18. Post-Employment Restriction. Sets forth post-employment restrictions on working for or against
the City.

SECTION 19. Nepotism Prohibited. No officer or employee of the city or city agency shall advocate the
employment, etc. of a family member, or supervise the work of a family member.

SECTIONS 20 - 24. Financial Disclosure. These sections provide who must file financial statements, when to
file statements and amended statements, form of statement of financial interests, control and maintenance of the
statement, contents of the financial interest statements and noncompliance with filing requirements.

SECTION 25. Non-Compliance with Filing Requirements. (A) The Barren River Board of Ethics, or the
Records Administrator, shall notify by certified mail each person required to file a statement of financial interests who
fails to file the statement by the due date, files an incomplete statement, or files a statement in a form other than
prescribed by the Board. The notice shall specify the type of failure or delinquency, shall establish a date by which the
failure or delinquency shall be remedied, and shall advise the person of the penalties for a violation.

(B) Any person who fails or refuses to file the statement or who fails or refuses to remedy a deficiency in
the filing identified in the notice under subsection (A) within the time period established in the notice shall be guilty of
a civil offense and shall be subject to civil fine imposed by the Board in an amount not to exceed twenty-five dollars
($25.00) per day, up to a maximum total civil fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00). Any civil fine imposed by the
Board under this section may be recovered by the Board in a civil action in the nature of a debt if the offender fails or
refuses to pay the penalty within a prescribed time.

© Any person who intentionally files a statement of financial interests which he or she knows to
contain false information or intentionally omits required information shall be guilty of a Class A misdemeanor.

SECTIONS 26 — 27 and SECTIONS 29-32. Enforcement and General Provisions. The City and the Barren
River Regional Board of Ethics entered into a Memorandum of Agreement dated January 5, 1995 which sets forth
the duties of the board. Reprisals against persons disclosing violations are prohibited. Upon a finding of guilty of
a violation, the Barren River Board of Ethics may impose civil fines, removal, suspension, demotion or other
disciplinary action. These sections also repeal any prior conflicting ordinances and set an effective date for this
ordinance and contain a severability clause.

SECTION 28. Penalties. (A)  Except when another penalty is specifically set forth in this ordinance any officer
or employee of the city or any city agency who is found by the Barren River Board of Ethics to have violated any
provision of this ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a civil offense and may be subject to a civil fine imposed by the
Board of Ethics not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), which may be recovered by the city in a civil action if
the offender fails to pay the penalty within a prescribed period of time.

B) In addition to all other penalties which may be imposed under the ordinance, any officer or
employee of the city or any city agency who is found by the Board of Ethics to have violated any provision of this
ordinance shall forfeit to the city or city agency an amount equal to the economic benefit or gain which the officer or
the employee is determined by the Board to have realized as a result of the violation. The amount of any forfeiture
may be recovered by the city on a civil action in the nature of debt, if the offender fails to pay the amount of the
forfeiture within a prescribed period of time.

© In addition to all other penalties which may be imposed under this ordinance, a finding by the Board
of Ethics that an officer or employee of the city or any city agency is guilty of a violation of this ordinance shall be
sufficient cause of removal, suspension, demotion, or other disciplinary action by the executive authority of the city or
city agency, or by any other officer or agency having the power of removal or discipline. Any action to remove or
discipline any officer or employee for a violation of this ordinance shall be taken in accordance with all applicable
ordinances and regulations of the city and all applicable laws of the Commonwealth.

P. 49



The full text of this ordinance is available at City Hall during normal business hours.

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned City Clerk of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, hereby certify that the foregoing Summary of
Ordinance No. 2019-012 of the City of Franklin, Kentucky was approved by the Board of Commissioners after second
reading on April 22, 2019, and was further approved for publication following adoption according to law.

Witness my hand this day of April, 2019.

Cathy Dillard, Clerk
City of Franklin, Kentucky

PREPARATION CERTIFICATE

The undersigned Attorney at Law licensed to practice in Kentucky hereby certifies that the foregoing
Summary of Ordinance No. 2019-012 of the City of Franklin, Kentucky, was prepared by the undersigned and
constitutes a general summary of certain essential provisions of said ordinance, reference to the full text of which
ordinance is hereby made for a complete statement of its provisions and terms.

W. SCOTT CRABTREE
Attorney at Law

212 South College Street

P. 0.Box 615

Franklin, Kentucky 42135-0615

P. 50



